
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 OCTOBER 17, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / October 3, 2011  / No Quorum / NO ACTION 

                                                   Special Called Council meeting minutes / October 10, 2011 

                                                   City Council Work Sessions minutes / October 10, 2011 

 

PRESENTATION:    Bradley Byrne / Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce Economic Development Summit  / 

                                      November 16, 2011 

 

PRESENTATION:  Mercy Medical / TEFRA Hearing / Richard Lacey / Resolution 2011-71 

 

NOMINATIONS TO FILL MAYORS POSITION 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:    

 

 1.)  Rezone:                      Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

       Location:                    On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                           Lot, 1, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

       Present Zoning:          R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and R-2, Medium Density Single Family  

                                           Residential 

       Requested Zoning:     R-3, High Density Single Family Residential  

       Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable           /           Ordinance 2011-70 

 

 2)  Rezone:                       Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                     On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                           Lot, 2, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:           R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:      R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential  

      Recommendation:       Unanimous Favorable          /           Ordinance 2011-71 

 

3.)  Rezone:             Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity 

      Location:                    On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Rd. 

                                          Lot, 3, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C  

      Present Zoning:          R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential  

      Requested Zoning:     R-4, High Density Single Family Residential  

      Recommendation:      Unanimous Favorable         /              Ordinance 2011-72 

 

4.)  Amend Land Use 

      & Development Ordinance  Revision to Zoning Map 

      Recommendation:  Unanimous Favorable        /       Ordinance 2011-73 

  

                                                       

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware     

          Review minutes / October 10
th
  

1.)  Ordinances: 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds: TimberCreek Emergency Drainage Repairs / Ordinance 2011-74 

      b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Feasibility Study for Solid Waste (Garbage) Transfer Station / 

                           Ordinance  2011-75 
c.) Appropriation of Funds: Justice Center R-Roof Project / Ordinance 2011-76 1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                            OCTOBER 17, 2011                                  PAGE  2 

 

 

     d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Two (2) Extended Cab Trucks / Ordinance 2011-77 

     c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Fuel Management System  / Ordinance 2011-78 

 

2.)  Resolution: 

a.)  Bid Award: 2011-AA Fuel Management System / McKinney Petroleum Equipment /  

                      Resolution 2011-72 
               b.) Bid Award: 2011-BB-PD/Justice Center Re-Roof Project / ACME Roofing & Sheet Metal Co.     

                       Resolution 2011-73 

     c.)  Bid Award: 2011-DD-Fuel / Minto Energy Corp. / Resolution 2011-74 

     d.)  Prepaid Travel / John Lake / NLC / November 9-13, 2011 / Phoenix, AZ / $175.00 / Resolution 2011-75 

          e.)  ALDOT Agreement US Hwy 98 Safety Project / Authorize Mayor to sign agreement / 

            Resolution 2011-70 
     f.)  MBNEP Grant / Authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement & approve Jade Engineering for  

                        consulting on project / Resolution 2011-76 

         g.)  Declare City Property Surplus / 1998 Crown Vic / Resolution 2011-77 

 

3.) MOTIONS: 

1.)      Motion to recommend for Council approve the City Prosecutor contract for FY 2012, for    

  $30,000 annually to be paid upon receipt of a monthly itemized statement with an   

  additional sum of $100/ hour for appeals, not to exceed $10,000, upon receipt of a  

  monthly itemized statement, for representation of the City of Daphne and to authorize the  

  Mayor to enter into this agreement. 
 

    2.)   Motion to approve any remaining previously Encumbered monies in the Lodging Tax  

           Fund for the following projects: Building Foundation - $29,354, Scardamalia Pavilion –  

           $33,819 (subfloor/insulation)  restrooms - $57,317 be utilized for other building repairs  

           needed for the Scardamalia Pavilion after initial state projects have been completed. 

 

3.)   Motion to recommend Council reject Bid: 2011-CC-PW/Extended Cab-4Door Truck Bid and  

        purchase off state bid list. 

 

4.)   Financial Reports 

     a)  Treasurers Report / September 30, 211 

     b.) Sales & Use Tax Collections / August 31, 2011 

     c.) Lodging Tax Collections / August 31, 2011 

     d)  Lodging Tax Fund Summary / August 2011 

  

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware          

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Boulware  

          Review minutes / October 12
th
  

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding     

          Nomination:  Environmental Advisory Board:  Bret W. Webb 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / August 4
th
  

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

          Nomination:  Dayna Oldham 

 

 2



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                       OCTOBER 17, 2011                                    PAGE   3  

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding          

    D.  Library Board – Lake      

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette  

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott     

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  
           MOTION:  Approve request from Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce for 2012 Jubilee Festival 

 

B. City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Modification of existing Median Crossover and Accesses 

       to the West Service Road on US Hwy 98 between D’Olive 

       Creek Bridge and Van Buren Street. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-70 

 

b.)   Authorizing the City Council to Hold a TEFRA Hearing 

       Pursuant to Section 147(F) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 

       As Amended. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-71 

 

c.)   Bid Award: Fuel Management System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-72 

 

d.)  Bid Award: Justice Center Re-Roof Project. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-73 

 

e.)  Bid Award: Fuel. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-74 

 

f.)  Prepaid Travel / John Lake. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-75 

 

g.)  MBNEP National Estuary Program Matching Funds to Create 

      Low Impact Development/Green Infrastructure Regulations and 

      Incentives Program. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-76 

 

h.)  Declare Certain Personal Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-77 

 

         

  ORDINANCES: 

 

      2
ND

 
 
READ 

a.)  Annexation:  Right-of-Way of AL State Highway 181 from Lawson  

      Road South to the Southernmost Corporate Limits of the City  

      of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-64 

 

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: Lott Park Tennis Courts Resurfacing. . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-68 3



 

 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                         OCTOBER 17, 2011                                      PAGE  4 

 

 

1
ST

 READ 

c.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 1, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-70 

 

d.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 2, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-71 

 

e.)  Rezone: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity / Lot 3, Dunmore Subdv. 

       Phase Two, Part C. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-72 

 

f.)   Revision to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Ordinance 2011-73 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds: TimberCreek Emergency  

       Drainage Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-74 

 

h.)  Appropriation of Funds: Feasibility Study: Transfer Station –  

       Garbage. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-75 

 

i.)   Appropriation of Funds: Justice Center Roof Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-76 

 

j.)   Appropriation of Funds: PW Crew Cab Trucks. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-77 

 

k.)   Appropriation of Funds: Fuel Management System. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-78 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

 

4



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

5



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

6



OCTOBER 3, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Pro tem Boulware called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; John Lake; Derek Boulware. 

 

ABSENT: Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; August Palumbo. 

 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Tonja 

Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Officer Jonathan Thompson; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission. 

 

Absent: Mayor Small; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources 

Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

 

There was not a quorum for the October 3, 2011 City Council meeting. 
 

Councilman Lake and Councilman Yelding called for a Special Called Council meeting to be held on 

October 10, 2011 at 6:30 p.m.  to consider the October 3, 2011 agenda, selection of mayor and to set a 

new Public Hearing for the annexation of Audubon Holding. 

 

 

2.  ADJOURN 

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 

 

 

7



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given Councilman Scott. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Vickie 

Hinman, Human Resources Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library 

Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Jane Ellis, Mayors Assistant; 

Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Mike Dawson, Police Department; Al 

Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Small; Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the September 19, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Literacy Awareness Week / October 3-9, 2011 

 

Councilman Boulware read the proclamation.  The proclamation was presented to the Literacy 

Awareness group on October 3, 2011. 

 

 

SET A NEW PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR NOVEMBER 7 TO CONSIDER: 

 
Annexation: Audubon Holding, LLC 

 Property Located: Southeast of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Present Zoning: RMF-6, Multiple Family District in Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

Recommendation:        Unanimous Favorable 

 

8



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing for November 7, 2011 to consider:  
 

Annexation: Audubon Holding, LLC 

Property Located: Southeast of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Road 

Present Zoning: RMF-6, Multiple Family District in Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

Recommendation:        Unanimous Favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PRESENTATION:  D’Olive Watershed Management Plan / Mrs. Ashley Campbell 

 

Mrs. Campbell presented a resolution in support of the D’Olive Watershed Management Plan.  

Components of the plan are to repair immediate problems, strengthen regulatory controls and restore 

watershed hydrology.  There will be a Task Force created, and the resolution will give the Mayor the 

authority to appoint someone from council to be on the Task Force. 

 

NOMINATIONS TO FILL MAYOR POSITION 

 

Councilman Lake nominated Council President Barnette. 

Councilman Reese nominated Councilman Boulware. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE FOR COUNCIL PRESIDENT BARNETTE: 

 

Yelding  Abstain   Boulware  Nay 

Lake   Abstain   Palumbo  Aye 

Reese   Nay    Barnette  Abstain 

Scott   Abstain 

 

AYE    Palumbo   NAY    Reese, Boulware   

 

ABSTAIN    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Barnette   NOMINATION  FAILED 

 

ROLL CALL VOT FOR COUNCILMAN BOULWARE: 

 

Yelding  Abstain   Boulware  Abstain 

Lake   Abstain   Palumbo  Abstain 

Reese   Aye    Barnette  Nay 

Scott   Abstain 

 

AYE    Reese   NAY    Barnette  

 

ABSTAIN    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo  NOMINATION FAILED 

 
9



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to carry the selection of Mayor to the October 17, 2011 council 

agenda.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.   

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report. 

 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 
The minutes for the September 14

th
 meeting are in the packet.  Council President Barnette asked how 

many tickets have been issued for texting while driving.  Chief Carpenter said none have been issued. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

The minutes for the September 14
th

 meeting are in the packet. The committee recommended that the 

waiving of sewer tap fees be the responsibility of the BZA, and that the Land Use ordinance be 

amended. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that this could not come before the BZA. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

The minutes for the September 19
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to appoint Matthew Locke and Dr. Thomas Bailey to the 

Environmental Advisory Board.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Councilman Yelding said they still need members.  

 

Councilman Boulware said that Fred Nation would be a good candidate, and Councilman Palumbo said 

that he had another nominee Dr. Brad Webb. 

 

Councilman Yelding asked them to send their resumes to the City Clerk to be on the next agenda. 

 

 

 

 

10



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

No report. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The visioning meeting for Olde Towne Daphne is October 26
th

 at Vino e Bira. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

 

MOTION BY Council Yelding to appoint Mr. Joe Davis to the Industrial Development Board.  

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Jones 

The minutes for the August 25
th

 meeting are in the packet.  Site Review meeting is next Wednesday, and 

the Planning Commission meeting is on Thursday, October 27
th

. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Reese to appoint Mr. Frank Pierce and Mrs. Lisa O’Hara to the 

Recreation Board.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Councilman Reese stated that the By-Laws are in the packet.  He asked whether council is supposed to 

approve them or not. 

 

Councilman Reese asked Mr. Ross to research this to see whether council has to approve them. 

 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

No report.  The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

1.)  Parade Permit / American Foundation of Suicide Prevention / Memory Walk / October 23, 2011  

2.)  Parade Permit / Daphne High School / Homecoming Parade / October 27, 2011 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to approve the Parade Permits for American Foundation of 

Suicide Prevention / Memory Walk / October 23, 2011 and Daphne High School / Homecoming 

Parade / October 27, 2011.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

3.)  Voting Delegate / National League of Cities / November 9-12, 2011 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to appoint Councilman Lake as the Voting Delegate to the 

National League of Cities Conference being held November 9-12, 2011.  Seconded by Councilman 

Reese. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

4.)  ABC License / Duck’s Unlimited / 240 – Non-Profit Tax Exempt  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to approve the ABC License for Duck’s Unlimited / 240 – 

Non-Profit Tax Exempt.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross reported that council needs to meet in Executive Session prior to the work session to discuss 

pending litigation, and that it will take about 20-30 minutes. 

 

Mr. Ross addressed the Hiring Freeze ordinance stating that after reviewing the ordinance and the 

Fairfield Supreme Court case he made a mistake in advising the Mayor and Human Resources that the 

decision by the Supreme Court governed the hiring of employees. He said he should have reviewed the 

court decision and the ordinance governing the hiring freeze before giving the advice. In his opinion 

that because this is a budgetary issue the decision rest with council.   

 

 Council asked Mr. Ross how to resolve the issue to date. 

 

Mr. Ross stated 1) They could ask the Mayor to recall the approval to hire outside, 2) Amend the 

budget to un-fund the position or 3) Wait until the new Mayor is chosen and let him recall it. 

 
12



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

Councilman Reese stated after discussion regarding the Hiring Freeze ordinance that council should 

revisit the ordinance. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that there was a bank robbery last week, and with the help 

of the Mississippi Police they solved the crime. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reminded everyone that Brown Bag by the Bay is Thursday 

at May Day Park 11:30 – 1:30.  The Daphne / Fairhope football game will be televised Thursday.  

Friday there will be a Columbus Day Bocce celebration at the Lott Park court.  Saturday there will be 

34 teams coming for a girl’s fast pitch softball tournament.  Saturday and Sunday is the Baldwin 

County Cross Country meet. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director - reported that Duck’s Unlimited is having their 

membership banquet on October 13
th

, October 18
th

 they will have a Drive thru Flu Clinic, October 20
th

 

there will be a book signing with Emeril Lagasse and October 28
th

 is the Habitat for Humanity 

Banquet. 

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 

Mr. Chester McConnell – 8803 Pine Run – spoke regarding the D’Olive Watershed Management 

Plan. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   D’Olive Watershed Management Plan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-69 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2011-69.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2011-69.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 
13



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 
ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ        
a.)  Daphne Real Property Transfer. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-65 

 

c.)   Lodging Tax Appropriation: Bay Front Richard Scardamalia  

       Pavilion Building / Stair Replacement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-66 

 

        1
ST 

READ 
c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Lott Park Tennis Courts Resurfacing. . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-68 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Randall Avenue Sidewalks. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-69 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-65 and 2011-66.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt ordinances 2011-65 and 2011-66.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2011-69.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Yelding  Aye     Boulware  Aye 

Lake Aye     Palumbo  Aye 

Reese Aye     Barnette  Aye 

Scott Aye    

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                   
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-69.  Seconded by 

Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adopt of Ordinance 2011-69.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

14



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2011-68 WAS MADE 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

NO COMMENTS 

 
9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation. The 

City Attorney certified that the reason given above is according to the Open Meetings Act, and the 

session will last between 20-30 minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding  Aye    Boulware  Aye 

Lake   Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese  Aye    Barnette  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

15



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

1 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.   

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Richard Johnson; Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David 

Carpenter, Police Chief;  James White, Fire Chief; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja 

Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director. 

 

Absent: Mayor Fred Small. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 8:12 p.m. 

 

1. ANNEXTION OF AL HIGHWAY 181 RIGHT-OF-WAY 

Chief Carpenter discussed the statistics they received from the state: 

 

Daphne Police Department (Hwy 181 from I-10 to Lawson Road) 

Total Calls for Service  501 

Traffic Stops   178 

Citations Issued  140 

Traffic Accidents  67    

 

Alabama State Troopers 

I have coordinated the requests for data with the Mobile Post supervisor Sgt. Joe Picket. 

Sgt. Picket has the opinion that Highway 181 is a significant drain on his resources. They 

have maintained a presence on 181 over the last several months to bring this under 

control.  

 

The troopers maintain data on all their enforcement action and traffic investigations. 

However, they are unable to pull that current data for a single roadway.   

 

Alabama Department of Transportation 

2010 traffic study – According to their 2010 traffic study 15,550 vehicles travel on 

Highway 181 between Highway 90 and County Road 64. DOT did not have a current 

2011 traffic study but they expect this number to increase as the roadway widening 

project has been completed. DOT expects to have a new traffic study done in the near 

future.     

 

Chief Carpenter stated that they will need four (4) cars, four (4) officers at a minimum plus salaries 

and equipment. 

 

Chief White stated that they will need nine (9) firefighters.  He also said that the annexation would 

affect the ISO rating.  The city has a 4 rating right now, but if it is configured to be five (5) miles 

outside the rating will change, and insurance premiums will rise. 

 

16



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

2 

 

 

Consensus of council is to put the annexation ordinance on the agenda for the October 17
th

 council 

meeting. 

 

The City Clerk reminded council that they are entering an election year, and they will have to cut off 

annexations at some point. 

 

Council President Barnette requested that he bring the cutoff dates to a work session for 

consideration. 

 

 

2. FY 2012 BUDGET: 
Mrs. Henson gave an overview of the budget.  It is $300,000 budget over revenues. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Yelding left the meeting at 8:40 p.m. 

 

Council asked if step increases were included in the budget. 

 

Mrs. Henson said she did not know, but would find out and let the council know. 

 

Council discussed with department heads the significant increases in some departments. 

 

Councilman Lake stated that the city is supposed to receive cable for free.  

 

Council asked Mr. Ross to research the franchise agreement with Mediacom.   

 

Council discussed revamping the city’s Comprehensive Plan.   

 

Councilman Palumbo wants to look at ways of keeping the Library open longer during the week and 

on Saturday, and being open on Sunday’s and holiday’s. 

 

Council requested that Chief White do a vehicle inventory with how old the trucks are and cost of 

maintaining them. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Palumbo left the meeting at 9:45 p.m. 

 

Council discussed recouping the cost of cleaning the restrooms and concession stands at the parks by 

including that in the fees for using the facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



OCTOBER 10, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

8:12 P.M.   (AFTER THE SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING) 

 

3 

 
3. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:56 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                            
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

62



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

October 10, 2011 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:01 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilman Bailey Yelding, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accountant Donna Page. 
 
Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, 
Revenue Officer Heather Gwynn, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Police Lieutenant Ric Yelding, 
Building Maintenance Supervisor Frank Barnett, Community Development Director Adrienne Jones, and 
Mayor’s Assistant Jane Ellis. 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
 

Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman presented the Human Resources activity update. The Revenue Accounting Tech position is 
open until October 19.  Discussion was made on the Revenue Tech position.   Ms. Hinman explained that the 
Mayor stated the City could advertise for a budgeted position per the Supreme Court ruling and he further 
advised that HR could speak with the City attorney for final clarification. Ms. Hinman continued to explain that 
the reason for the clarification was due to the new Supreme Court ruling.   City Attorney, Jay Ross was asked 
about the legality of filling this position. Mr. Ross advised that the Mayor could authorize the advertising for a 
budgeted position so the position was advertised.   
 
Ms. Hinman noted that Ms. Briley had noted in her e-mail to Mr. Ross.... as you recall earlier in the year the 
Revenue Tech position was vacated and Council did not authorize the City to fill the position so we are running 
the dept with one person and it is causing an undue hardship.  The position is budgeted and funded can we 
advertise and get someone in this  position. 
 
Ms. Hinman noted the she and the Finance Director went by directive of the Mayor and further directive of City 
attorney before advertising.   
 
Mr. Yelding noted that Mr. Ross had noted in an e-mail to Council that after later reviewing the Ordinance 
adopted by the City on the FY2011 Budget Hiring Freeze and he would not have advised to advertise. 
 
Mr. Scott noted that the Council has the right to appropriate fund and as he understands it the Mayor has the 
right to hire if it is a budgeted position.  Mr. Scott stated he felt we needed to hire a person for this position and 
noted that this is a department where you need more than one person.  Mr. Scott discussed that the City spent a 
lot of money on a forensic audit on this department.  Mr. Scott discussed legality of not funding certain positions 
crucial to City operations.  Discussion continued that clarification is needed on this process from the City 
attorney. 
 
Ms. Hinman noted that changes have been made to the Pay Table for the $.50/hour increase and that Ms. Briley 
was reviewing the updated pay table and any updates would be presented.  
  
The Safety Committee discussed personal injuries and property damages for the month.  Discussion continued 
that the stairs at the back of the Bay Front facility will be replaced.  
 63



Finance Minutes - 10-10.doc  2  

Ms. Hinman reported on the following HR department projects:  
 Flu Shots for Employees and Council – October 6, 2011 
 Reviewing Personnel Policies – Transitional Duty, FMLA, Social Media 
 Pay Table Revision – to reflect the $.50 per hour increase 

 Performance Review Audit 
  

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  September 30, 2011 

 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,502,352.25 was presented.  
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of September 30, 2011, in 
the amount of $18,502,352.25.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: August 31, 2011 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for August 2011   -   $888,625 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for August 2011   -   $781,228             
Over Budget (for August)                                    -   $107,397 

 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $935,090  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, August 2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $52,820.33 collected for August, 2011 
 
4.  Lodging Tax Fund Balance Summary, August 2011 
 
The Lodging Tax Fund Balance Summary as of August 31, 2011 was presented, showing an unreserved fund 
balance of $1,180,616.  It was discussed that some of the encumbrances may be able to be released if the 
projects have been completed, such as the Nicholson Center Architectural Plans.  Ms. Henson noted she would 
check with Ms. Briley on the status of the projects on the list. Mr. Frank Barnett noted that stage 1 of the 
Scardamalia Pavilion has been completed, but not stage 2.  Mr. Scott asked about the possibility of installing an 
elevator at the pavilion. Mr. Richard Johnson noted he would check into it.  
(Additional request for repairs on Scardamalia Pavilion roof was previously discussed at the Building & Property Meeting at 
an estimated cost of $49,500) 

 
5.   Report: New Business Licenses – September 2011 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in September was presented.   
 
6.  Bills Paid Reports – September 2011 
 
The September Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2.  

 
B.  Appropriation Request  
 
General Fund - 
 

 Timber Creek Emergency Drainage Repairs - $23,400 
 

Mr. Johnson discussed that approximately 120 linear feet of 18 inch diameter HDPE (High-Density 
Polyethylene) pipe has failed between two properties (8643 & 8659 Pine Run) in the Timber Creek 
Subdivision causing sinkholes to form. Mr. Johnson noted that there are no reports of structural damage 

64



Finance Minutes - 10-10.doc  3  

to the houses yet, but due to the close proximity to the houses and the depth of the pipe, it was 
considered beyond the technical abilities of the Public Works personnel to replace.  Five quotes to 
perform the work have been obtained with the lowest quote from Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of 
$23,400. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council appropriate $23,400 from the FY 2012 
budget for emergency replacement and repair of the piping at 8643 & 8659 Pine Run, 
Timbercreek Subdivision.  Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 
 

 Feasibility Study for Solid Waste (Garbage) Transfer Station - $11,500 
 

Mr. Johnson discussed the need for a garbage transfer station at Public Works.  He noted that each 
garbage truck currently has to make the 90 minute round trip to Bay Minette daily to discharge their 
load.  HMR Engineering will do a feasibility study for the conversion/construction of a transfer station at 
Public Works.  Mr. Johnson stated that this feasibility study will provide all the needed information for  
Council to make an informed decision as to the cost vs. benefits of such an addition. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council appropriate $11,500 from the FY 2012 
budget for professional services to generate a feasibility study for the 
conversion/construction of a Transfer Station at Public Works for the Solid Waste 
Division. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 American Coed Pageants - $20 
 

A request from Miss Alabama Preteen for 2011-2012 Lauryn Ashley Chadwick for a $20 donation to 
help defray the costs incurred as she competes at the American Coed’s National Pageant in Orlando, 
Florida, November 21-26, 2011 was presented. 
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council authorize the Mayor’s Assistant to write 
a letter to Ms. Chadwick declining the $20 donation request due to it not being in the 
City’s budget.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Justice Center Re-Roof Project - $579,000 – Bid 2011-BB-PD/JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT 
 

The need for roof repairs at the Justice Center was discussed.  It was noted that 15 bid invitations were 
sent out, with four sealed bids received.  Staff recommends the low bid from ACME Roofing & Sheet 
Metal in the amount of $579,000 be accepted.  Lieutenant Ric Yelding stated that, in addition to the bid 
work, another $5,500 is needed for a lightening rod, and estimated $5,500 for decking making the total 
request $590,000. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $590,000 
from the FY 2012 budget for the Justice Center Re-Roof Project and adopt a resolution  
awarding bid 2011-BB-PD/JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT to ACME Roofing & 
Sheet Metal in the amount of $579,000. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Two (2) Crew Cab Trucks – PW - $44,424 – Bid 2011-CC-PW/EXTENDED CAB – 4 DOOR TRUCK 
 

Mr. Johnson discussed the need for two supervisor replacement trucks in Public Works departments: 
Street & Solid Waste. Nine bid invitations were sent out, with five sealed bids received.  The low bid of 
$22,696.56 each from Joe Usry is more than the state bid price of $21,270 (total of $22,212 with tool 
box and warning lights that are required).  Mr. Johnson also noted that the bid included a 3% preference 
for local bidders but the bid received from the local dealer, Bayview Ford ($24,282) was more than 3% 
over the lowest bid and over state bid cost. Mr. Johnson’s recommendation is that all bids be rejected 
and the vehicles purchased from the State bid list. 

65



Finance Minutes - 10-10.doc  4  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $44,424 
from the FY 2012 budget for the purchase of two (2) PW Super Crew Cab Trucks and 
that all bids be rejected and the trucks purchased from the State bid list. Seconded by 
Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 

 
 

 Fuel Management System - $31,995 – Bid  2011-AA-FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
The need for a new fuel management system was discussed. Mr. Johnson stated that the current 
system is outdated and cost too much to repair and maintain.  The new system would use a card key 
and would be current with technology.  Six bid invitations were sent out, with two sealed bids received.  
Staff recommends the low bid from McKinney Petroleum Equipment in the amount of $31,994.40 
(including a 2

nd
 year maintenance contract) be accepted. 

 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$31,995 from the FY 2012 budget for the purchase of a new fuel management system 
and a resolution awarding bid 2011-AA-FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM to McKinney 
Petroleum Equipment in the amount of $31,994.40. Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion 
carried. 

 
 

C. Bid 
1.  2011-DD- FUEL 

 
Eight bid invitations were sent out, with four sealed bids received.  Staff recommends the low bid from 
Minto Energy Corporation be accepted. 

 Unleaded (89+ Octane) : $ .034 (30 day payment) & $ .03 (15 day payment) above unit 
cost 

 Diesel Fuel : $ .037 (30 day payment) & $ .033 (15 day payment) above unit cost 
 
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt an resolution awarding Bid 2011-
DD-Fuel to Minto Energy Corporation for a margin of $ .034 (30 day payment) & $ .03 
(15 day payment) above unit cost for UNLEADED (89+ Octane); and $ .037 (30 day 
payment) & $ .033 (15 day payment) above unit cost for DIESEL:  . Seconded by Mr. 
Scott.   Motion carried. 
 

2.  2011-CC-PW/EXTENDED CAB – 4 DOOR TRUCK 
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council reject the PW/Extended Cab-4 Door 
Truck Bid and purchase off state bid list. Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 

D.  Prepaid Travel 
 

 John Lake, Council, National League of Cities, Phoenix, AZ, November 9 – 13, 2011 - $175 
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution approving prepaid 
travel for John Lake, Councilman, National League of Cities, Phoenix, AZ, November 9 
– 13, 2011 - $175. Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
 

E. ALDOT Agreement US 98 Safety Project – Authorize Mayor to Sign Agreement  
 
Mr. Johnson noted this project has been ongoing and the agreement needs to be signed by the City. 

66



Finance Minutes - 10-10.doc  5  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement 
with ALDOT for the US 98 Safety Project. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 
 
 

F.  MBNEP Grant – Approve In-kind Match (Labor) - $15,000 / Authorize the Mayor to 
enter into agreement / Authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with JADE 
Consulting 
 
Ms. Henson and Ms. Adrienne Jones discussed that the in-kind match would be regular labor and would not 
involve overtime.  Ms. Jones noted she would be the liaison between Dauphin Island Sea Lab (DISL) and the 
Mobile Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP) on behalf of the City of Daphne.    
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council approve labor for in-kind match for the 
MBNEP Grant and authorize the Mayor to enter into agreement and contract with JADE 
Consulting, LLC. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 

 
G.  City Prosecutor Contract – FY 2012 
 
The 2012 service contract with the City Prosecutor was discussed.  Ms. Henson noted that the current contract 
is for an annual fee of $30,000 paid on a monthly basis ($2,500/month) and an additional fee of $100/hour for 
cases appealed.  Ms Henson noted that the appeal fees are paid upon receipt of a monthly itemized statement 
and that this fee cannot exceed $10,000 in a year.  Ms. Henson submitted a summary by month of appeal fees 
billed showing the $10,000 was met in June, 2011 and that an additional 42.20 hours were not billed from June 
– September, 2011.  Ms. Henson noted that a motion was needed to authorize the Mayor to enter into a new 
contract for FY2012.                
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council approve the City Prosecutor contract for 
FY 2012, for $30,000 annually to be paid upon receipt of a monthly itemized statement 
with an additional sum of $100 per hour, not to exceed $10,000, upon receipt of a 
monthly itemized statement, for representation of the City of Daphne in cases 
appealed to Baldwin County and to authorize the Mayor to enter into this agreement..  
Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 
 
 

H.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 
The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept   Tag/Veh#      Description          Vin# / Serial #                     
Building Maintenance/         698  1998 Ford Crown Vic  2FAFP71W1WX122691 
Janitorial   
 

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such equipment. Seconded 
by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
  

 
V. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:55p.m. 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, October 12, 2011 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       
Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
Members Present: Derek Boulware and Ron Scott 

 

Others Present:  David Cohen and Eric Bussey 
  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
None 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

a.  Waiver of Sewer Tap Fee 
 

Will be discussed at next Ordinance Committee Meeting 

 
b.   Workers Comp Insurance Procedures 

 

The committee  discussed the revised draft presented by Eric Bussey 

 
Motion by Mr. Boulware Seconded by Mr. Reese  To have Vickie Hinman post for 

ten days and have on the November 7 city council agenda. 

 
ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

c. Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               
consider. 

 

The hiring freeze ordinance was discussed and the need to add the passage as when a position 

is vacated the position would automatically be defunded from the budget. 
 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

None 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware Seconded by Mr. Reese  To adjourn at 5:27 P.M. 
 

 ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED

83



 

84



85



86



87



88



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

89



90



91



92



Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

 

Dayna Cantin Oldham 

Buckle My Shoe LLC (Owner) 
Current Home Address 

1618 Sixth Street 

Daphne Alabama 36526 

Phone: 251-751-6726 

Email: daynaoldham@yahoo.com 

 Current Business Address 

1716 Main Street   Suite A 

Daphne Alabama 36526 

Phone: 251-621-8743 

Email: 
bucklemyshoe2008@yahoo.com 

 

Objective:  A position on the board of the Downtown Redevelopment Authority that 
represents the retail interests of the downtown Daphne area. 

 

Personal Information:  

DOB: 06-13-1977 

Resident of Daphne since 1993  

Single parent of 2 boys:  

Bryar (5yrs) (Attends Daphne Elementary School Kindergarden) 

  Brady (3yrs) (Attends Daphne United Methodist Church MDOP) 

Attends COT ES Church 

Active in SEEDS  

Education:   

Spring Hill College Graduate Class of 06’ 

Daphne High School Graduate 

 

93



 

 

94



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

95



96



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

97



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

98



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-70 
 

Modification of existing Median Crossover and Accesses to the West Service 
Road on US 98 between D’Olive Creek Bridge and Van Buren Street 

 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama 
as follows: 
 

1. That the City of Daphne, Alabama enter into an agreement with the State of 
Alabama, acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation 
for: 

Modification of existing Median Crossover and Accesses to the West 
Service Road on US 98 between D’Olive Creek Bridge and Van 
Buren Street 

 
Which Agreement is before this Council; 
 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for 
and on its behalf; and 

 
3. That the signature of the Mayor be attested by the City Clerk and that the 

seal of the City be affixed to the Agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ________ day of ____________, 2011. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Cathy Barnette, Council President 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk 

      
 
 

99



100



101



102



103



 

 
 1060625.1 034066  CORR 

                              CITY OF DAPHNE 

                       RESOLUTION NO. 2011-71 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

COUNCIL TO HOLD A TEFRA HEARING PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 147(F) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE  

CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED 

 

WHEREAS, The Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of the City of 

Daphne, Villa Mercy (the “Authority”) has been established pursuant to Section 11-62-1 et seq. 

of the Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, to assist nonprofit entities in the financing and 

refinancing of healthcare and related facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issued its Revenue Bonds (Mercy 

Medical Project), Series 1997 and Series 2000 (the “Bonds”) for the benefit of Mercy Medical, A 

Corporation, a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama (the 

“Corporation”) which owns and operates assisted living facilities, independent living facilities 

and skilled nursing facilities in Daphne, Fairhope and Mobile, Alabama (collectively, the 

“Facilities”); and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds were used by the Corporation 

to finance and refinancing capital expenditures at the Facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested the assistance of the Authority and 

the City Council of the City of Daphne with respect to certain requirements of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) relating to the sale of the Facilities; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the Corporation intends to 

keep the Bonds outstanding pursuant to their terms and has elected to utilize the “alternate 

qualified use of proceeds” provisions of the Code whereby the proceeds of the sale of the 

Facilities will be applied by the Corporation to other qualified capital expenditures; and  

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Code requires that a public hearing be held by 

or on behalf of the Authority (the “TEFRA Hearing”) relating to the application of the sale 

proceeds of the Facilities to the alternate qualified uses as shall be described in the notice of the 

TEFRA Hearing (the “TEFRA Notice”);  and 

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Code requires approval by the City Council of 

the City of Daphne following the TEFRA Hearing of the application of the sale proceeds of the 

Facilities to the alternate qualified uses as shall be described in the TEFRA Notice; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested that the City Council of the City of 

Daphne hold a TEFRA Hearing relating to the application of the sale proceeds of the Facilities as 

shall be described in the TEFRA Notice and, following the TEFRA Hearing, grant approval of  

104



 

 
 1060625.1 034066  CORR 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-71                MERCY MEDICAL TEFRA                          PAGE  2 

 

the application of the sale proceeds of the Facilities as shall be described in the TEFRA Notice, 

all as required by Section 147(f) of the Code. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne that the TEFRA Hearing as required by Section 147(f) of the Code shall be held by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne at its regularly scheduled meeting to be held on October 17, 

2011. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that 

the Corporation shall be authorized to publish the TEFRA Notice within the time and in such 

publications as may be required by Section 147(f) of the Code. 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ______ day of __________, 2011. 

 

    __________________________________ 

    Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

__________________________________ 

Fred Small, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

________________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk 

105



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-72 

2011-AA-FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the FUEL 
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM will exceed this amount; and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
be awarded to McKinney Petroleum Equipment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of McKinney Petroleum Equipment for a cost of $29,984.40 + 
Second year Maintenance cost of $2,010 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION 
NO: 2011-AA-FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS            day of                       , 2011 
 

                                                                                                                                     
________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
         

 
      ________________________________ 

                                      Fred Small, Mayor 
       

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk CMC 
 
 

106



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-73 

2011-BB-JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the JUSTICE 
CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF 
PROJECT and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF 
PROJECT be awarded to ACME Roofing & Sheet Metal Co., Inc. . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Inland Air Systems for the amount of $579,000 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2011-BB-JUSTICE CENTER RE-ROOF PROJECT. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS            day of                          ,2011. 
 
 
                                                                ________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
       

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
        

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 
 
 

107



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-74 

2011-DD-FUEL 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the FUEL will 
exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FUEL and determined that the bid 
as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FUEL be awarded to Minto Energy 
Corporation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Minto Energy Corporation for margin cost of: 

   
 Unleaded (89+ Octane) : $ .034 (30 day payment) & $ .03 (15 day payment) 

above unit cost 
 Diesel Fuel : $ .037 (30 day payment) & $ .033 (15 day payment) above unit 

cost 
 as bid in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2011-DD-FUEL. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of             , 2011. 
 
 
 
                                                                           
                                                                ________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

     

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 

       

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

108



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-75 

PREPAID TRAVEL 
 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 
Prepaid travel expenses are approved for the purpose and amount indicated below for the 
following: 
 

1. John Lake, Councilman, National League of Cities Conference, Phoenix, AR, 
November 9-13, 2011 - $175 

 
A complete expense summary with receipts will be submitted and approved by the Mayor upon 
return from the above. 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on 

this              
 
  

 
    day of            , 2011.              

                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                 
                                                                                 _________________________________ 

                                                                                     Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

             
                              

     _________________________________ 

                                                                                      Fred Small, Mayor 
             

 

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

109



 
City of Daphne 

 
RESOLUTION 2011-76 

 
Mobile Bay National Estuary Program Matching Grant Funds to create  

Low Impact Development/Green Infrastructure  
Regulations (LID/GI) and Incentives Program  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2011-14, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application 
for funding in the amount of $22,500 - $75,000 from the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (US EPA), through Mobile Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP) to assist in the 
development of alternatives to traditional stormwater management measures; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has received notification that such grant application has been 
approved and funding available for the creation of LID/GI  provisions and incentives; and,  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is aware there is a required City match:  1:1 Ratio of in-kind 
services in the amount of $15,000; and,   
 
WHEREAS, professional consulting services will be required in developing said provisions and 
incentives, and a request for qualifications was distributed by Community Development; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received statements of qualifications for professional services and 
such proposals were reviewed by the LID/GI Selection Committee and Community Development;  
and, 
  
WHEREAS, upon evaluations and interviews with candidates, the committee determined that Jade 
Consulting, LLC met requirements for providing professional services necessary to carry out the 
project’s scope of work;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that: 
  

1)     The City of Daphne hereby accepts the contract with MBNEP attached hereto and 
made a part hereof; and, 

 
2)     The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and affix the city seal to 

such grant contract for and on behalf of the City of Daphne; and,  
 

3)     The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to enter into agreement with Jade 
Consulting, LLC in the amount of $15,000 for professional consulting services 
regarding site design, stormwater management, low impact development and green 
infrastructure design, practices, and implementation. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the Agreement by 

all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ________ day of ____________, 2011. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



RESOLUTION 2011 - 77 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Trans to BM-

Jani. fr Rev 8/07 698 1998 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W1WX122691 
    

    

    

    

    

    
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Fred Small, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

119



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011-64 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAY OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181 FROM LAWSON ROAD SOUTH TO THE SOUTHERNMOST 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 25
th

 day of May, 2011, the State of Alabama, being the owner of the 

real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Vincent 

E. Calametti, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, 

and a map of said property showing its proximity to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, whereby the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real 

property into the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of providing fire and police protection; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2011, by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

120



 

 
ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  2 

 

 

 

Name:   Right-of-Way of Alabama State Highway 181 from Lawson Road southward unto the  

              southernmost City limits 

 

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 27), 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT 

OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2328-C&D, 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE 

EASTERLY  TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

PROPERTY LINE OF DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS 

RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2414-A&B, SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-

WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT OF 

THE PROJECTED INTERSECTION OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAWSON ROAD; THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

121



 

ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  3  
 

  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

122



ORDINANCE 2011-68  
 
 

Lott Park Tennis Courts Resurfacing   
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for Lott Park 
Tennis Courts Resurfacing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lott Park Tennis Courts need resurfacing to maintain the courts for 
future use by the citizens of Daphne. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $9,700 for the resurfacing of the Lott 
Park Tennis Courts.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

123



ORDINANCE NO. 2011 - 70 
 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located East Side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin 

Road , North of Dick Higbee Road(34.48  Acres) 

Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity, Lot 1, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C   (A) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District and R-2 

Medium Density Single Family Residential District, to a R-3, High Density Multi-Family Residential 

District, to said property is located East Side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin Road, North of 

Dick Higbee Road being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEING ALL OF LOT 10 AND A PORTION OF LOTS 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 22, 23, AND 24 

SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, AS 

RECORDED IN MISCELLANEOUS BOOK 1, PAGES 290 AND 291 OF THE PROBATE 

COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 31, DUNMORE, 

PHASE ONE, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NOS. 2414-A AND 2414-B OF THE 

PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE 

SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 00° 39' 23" 

E 188.58 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 14.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 625.34 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 167.00 

FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 2.80 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 217.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 0.95 FEET, S 89° 

20' 37" E 347.0 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 6.40 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 167.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 

135.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S 00° 02' 10" E 490.18 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

RUN N 89° 57' 50" E 382.13 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19° 56' 52" AND A RADIUS OF 250.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 

ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN EASTWARDLY A DISTANCE OF 87.04 FEET TO THE P.R.C. 

OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19° 56' 52" AND A RADIUS 

OF 250.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN EASTWARDLY A 

DISTANCE OF 87.04 FEET TO THE P.T. OF SAID CURVE; THENCE RUN N 89° 57' 50" E 

605.48 FEET TO POINT; THENCE RUN N 00° 02' 10" W 158.05 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A 

CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30° 46' 34" AND A RADIUS OF 

125.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN NORTHWARDLY A 

DISTANCE OF 67.14 FEET TO THE P.R.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 31° 28' 07" AND A RADIUS OF 125.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 

ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN NORTHWARDLY A DISTANCE OF 68.65 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTH BOUNDARY OF DUNMORE, PHASE ONE; THENCE 

ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY OF DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN AS FOLLOWS: S 89° 

20' 37" E 797.82 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 10.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 

200.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 140.00 FEET, S 85° 31' 51" E 109.46 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

RUN S 11° 12' 24" E 119.11 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 12° 01' 52" AND A RADIUS OF 275.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 

ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN SOUTHWARDLY 57.75 FEET TO THE P.T. OF SAID CURVE; 

THENCE RUN S 00° 40' 28" W 143.11 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 

HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 76° 41' 31" AND A RADIUS OF 175.00 FEET; THENCE 

ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN SOUTHWESTWARDLY 234.24 FEET TO THE 

P.C.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17° 02' 37" AND A 

RADIUS OF 150.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN 

WESTWARDLY 44.62 FEET TO THE P.C.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 26' 11" AND A RADIUS OF 350.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 

ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN WESTWARDLY 45.43 FEET TO THE P.R.C. OF A CURVE TO 

THE LEFT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11° 52' 57" AND A RADIUS OF 350.00 FEET; 

THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN WESTWARDLY 72.59 FEET TO THE 

P.T. OF SAID CURVE; THENCE RUN S 89° 57' 50" W 27.96 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

RUN S 00° 02' 10" E 175.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF LOT 19 

SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, AS 

RECORDED IN MISCELLANEOUS BOOK 1, PAGES 290 AND 291 OF THE PROBATE 

COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY 

OF LOT 19 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND  

124



ORDINANCE 2011-70                  REZONE HEARTHSTONE LOT 1                           PAGE  2 
 

FARMS AND THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF LOTS 20 AND 21 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, 

T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, RUN S 89° 57' 50" W 1520.48 

FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 22 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS 

SHOWN ON SAID PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS; THENCE ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY 

OF SAID LOT 22 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT OF 

HIGHLAND FARMS, RUN S 00° 39' 55" W 30.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S 89° 57' 

50" W 1472.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 34.4817 ACRES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on August 25, 2011 has considered 

said request and set forth an affirmative recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne that said 

property  be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

October 17, 2011 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-1, Low Density 

Single Family Residential District and R-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential District, to a R-3, 

High Density Multi-Family Residential District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended 

to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS   _____ day of _______________, 2011. 

         

 

        _____________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

                                        

 

        _____________________________ 

        Fred Small, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 

125



126



127



ORDINANCE NO. 2011 - 71 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located East Side of Alabama Highway 181, South of 

Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Road (11.84 Acres) 

Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity, Lot 2, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two Part C  (B) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

have requested that said property be rezoned from R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential 

District to R-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential District said property is located East 

Side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Road, being more 

particularly described as follows:  
 

Legal Description: 

 
BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 5, 11, AND 12, SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN 

ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, AS RECORDED IN MISCELLANEOUS BOOK 1, PAGES 290 

AND 291 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 31, DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NOS. 2414-A AND 

2414-B OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 

00° 39' 23" E 188.58 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 14.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 625.34 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" 

E 167.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 2.80 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 217.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 0.95 FEET, 

S 89° 20' 37" E 347.0 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 6.40 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 167.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" 

W 135.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY OF DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN 

AS FOLLOWS: S 89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 12.98 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 500.00 

FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 42.90 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 250.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 200.00 FEET, S 

89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 15.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 25.00 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE ARC OF A 125.00 FOOT CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 31° 28' 07"  AND 

BEING CONCAVE EASTWARDLY; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN 

SOUTHWARDLY 68.65 FEET TO THE P.R.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A 

CENTRAL ANGLE OF 30° 46' 34" AND A RADIUS OF 125.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC 

OF SAID CURVE, RUN SOUTHWARDLY 67.14 FEET TO THE P.T. OF SAID CURVE; THENCE 

RUN S 00° 02' 10" E 158.05 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S 89° 57' 50" W 605.48 FEET TO 

THE P.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19° 56' 52" AND A 

RADIUS OF 250.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN WESTWARDLY 

A DISTANCE OF 72.59 FEET TO THE P.R.C. OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE ALONG 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN WESTWARDLY A DISTANCE OF 87.04 FEET TO THE P.T. 

OF SAID CURVE; THENCE RUN S 89° 57' 50" W 382.13 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 

00° 02' 10" W 490.18 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 11.8461 ACRES. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on August 25, 2011 has 

considered said request and set forth an affirmative recommendation to the City Council of the City 

of Daphne that said property  be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on 

Monday, October 17, 2011 concerning the requested rezoning. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

128



 

ORDINANCE 2011-71                   REZONE HEARTHSTONE LOT 2                          PAGE  2 

 

 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-1, Low 

Density Single Family Residential District, to a R-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential 

District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS   _____ day of _______________, 2011. 

         

 

        _____________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

                                        

        _____________________________ 

        Fred Small, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 

129



130



131



ORDINANCE NO. 2011 - 72 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located East Side of Alabama Highway 181, South of 

Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Road (3.77 Acres) 

Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity, Lot 3, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C   (C) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District to  R-4 

High Density Single Family Residential District to said property is located East Side of Alabama Highway 

181, South of Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Road being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 13 AND 14 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON 

PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, AS RECORDED IN MISCELLANEOUS BOOK 1, PAGES 290 

AND 291 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 

OF LOT 31, DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NOS. 2414-A AND 

2414-B OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN AS FOLLOWS: N 

00° 39' 23" E 188.58 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 14.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 625.34 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" 

E 167.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 2.80 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 217.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 0.95 FEET, 

S 89° 20' 37" E 347.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 6.40 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 167.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" 

W 135.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 12.98 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 500.00 

FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 42.90 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 250.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 200.00 FEET, S 

89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, S 00° 39' 23" W 15.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 822.82 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" 

E 10.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 200.00 FEET, N 00° 39' 23" E 200.00 FEET, S 89° 20' 37" E 140.00 

FEET, S 85° 31' 51" E 109.46 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY 

HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING S 85° 31' 51" E ALONG SAID SOUTH 

BOUNDARY OF DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN A DISTANCE OF 116.12 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY OF DUNMORE, PHASE ONE, RUN 

S 89° 20' 37" E 75.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST BOUNDARY OF LOT 15 SITUATED IN 

SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, AS RECORDED IN 

MISCELLANEOUS BOOK 1, PAGES 290 AND 291 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY OF LOT 15 SITUATED IN 

SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS, RUN S 00° 40' 28" W 

683.58 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 19 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, 

AS SHOWN ON SAID PLAT OF HIGHLAND FARMS; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH 

BOUNDARY OF LOT 19 SITUATED IN SECTION 35, T5S-R2E, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF 

HIGHLAND FARMS, RUN S 89° 57' 50" W 482.01 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 00° 02' 

10" W 175.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 89° 57' 50" E 27.96 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A 

CURVEY TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 11° 52' 57" AND A RADIUS OF 

350.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN EASTWARDLY 72.59 FEET 

TO THE P.R.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07° 26' 11" AND 

A RADIUS OF 350.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN 

EASTWARDLY 45.43 FEET TO THE P.C.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CENTRAL 

ANGLE OF 17° 02' 37" AND A RADIUS OF 150.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID 

CURVE, RUN EASTWARDLY 44.62 FEET TO THE P.C.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING 

A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 76° 41' 31" AND A RADIUS OF 175.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 

ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN NORTHEASTWARDLY 234.24 FEET TO THE P.T. OF SAID 

CURVE; THENCE RUN N 00° 40' 28" E 143.11 FEET TO THE P.C. OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT 

HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 12° 01' 52" AND A RADIUS OF 275.00 FEET; THENCE 

ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, RUN NORTHWARDLY 57.75 FEET TO THE P.T. OF SAID 

CURVE; THENCE RUN N 11° 12' 24" W 119.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 3.7791 ACRES. 

 

 

 

 

 
132



 

ORDINANCE 2011-72             REZONE HEARTHSTONE LOT 3                             PAGE  2  

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on August 25, 2011 has considered said 

request and set forth an affirmative recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne that said 

property  be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

October 17, 2011 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from R-1, Low Density 

Single Family Residential District, to  R-4 High Density Single Family Residential District, and that the 

zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS   _____ day of _______________, 2011. 

         

 

        _____________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

                                        

        _____________________________ 

        Fred Small, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 

133



134



135



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO.  2011-73 
 

 
 

Zoning District Map 

Revision to Appendix H of the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their 
regular meeting held on August 25, 2011 , favorably recommended to the City Council of 
the City of Daphne certain amendments to the Zoning District Map approved and adopted 
by the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, referenced in 
Appendix H AExhibit A@ thereof and amended by Ordinance No. 2003-06, Ordinance No. 
2005-11, Ordinance No. 2005-42, Ordinance No. 2006-24, Ordinance No. 2006-73, 
Ordinance No. 2007-15, Ordinance, 2007-48, Ordinance 2008-56, Ordinance 2009-19, 
Ordinance 2009-60, Ordinance 2010-66, 2011-20; and 
 

WHEREAS, said amendments are necessary due to various rezoning and 
annexation requests which have been approved since the adoption of Ordinance 2002-22, 
Ordinance 2003-06, Ordinance  2005-11, Ordinance 2005-42, Ordinance 2006-24, 
Ordinance 2006-73, Ordinance 2007-15, Ordinance 2007-48, Ordinance 2008-56, 
Ordinance 2009-19 and Ordinance 2009-60, 2010-66, 2011-20; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed zoning map amendments has been 
provided to the public as required by law through publication and open display at the City  
of Daphne Public Library and City Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing regarding the proposed Zoning District Map 
amendments was held by the City Council on October 17, 2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 
recommendation of the Planning Commission believe it in the best interest of the health, 
safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne to amend said Zoning District Map 
as recommended; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

136



 
ORDINANCE 2011-73              

REVISION TO ZONING MAP      

PAGE   2 
___________________________ 

 

SECTION I: ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

 
The Zoning District Map referenced hereto as Exhibit AA@ shall be the official zoning 

map of the City of Daphne, Alabama and shall be further designated in Appendix H of 
Exhibit AA@ of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, as set forth in 
Ordinance No. 2002-22 and its amendments. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 
Ordinances Nos. 2002-22, Appendix H AExhibit A@, 2003-06, 2005-11, 2005-42, 

2006-24, 2006-73,  2007-15, 2007-48, 2008-56, 2009-19, 2009-60 and 2010-66 are 
specifically repealed and any Ordinance(s), parts of Ordinance(s) or Resolution(s) 
conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they 
conflict. 
 

SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City of Daphne City Council and publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA ON THE  ____  DAY OF                    , 2011. 

 

 

______________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE,  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 
                     

_____________________ 

FRED SMALL,  

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

137



ORDINANCE 2011-74  
 
 

Timber Creek Emergency Drainage Repairs 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain drainage repairs are necessary in the Timber Creek 
Subdivision. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $23,400 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the drainage 
repairs in Timber Creek Subdivision (property: 8643 & 8659 Pine Run).   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

138



ORDINANCE 2011-75  
 

Feasibility Study: Transfer Station - Garbage 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the feasibility study for a Transfer Station at Public Works will provide 
the needed information to evaluate if constructing a transfer station would be cost 
effective. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $11,500 are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Feasibility Study for the Transfer Station. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

 Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

139



ORDINANCE 2011-76  
 
 

Justice Center Roof Repairs Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Justice Center has had several issues with the roof leaking during 
rain storms, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the Justice Center to 
maintain and protect the building. 
 
WHEREAS, this project has been bid: Bid document # 2011-BB-PD/Justice Center 
Re-Roof Project, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $590,000 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the repair and 
maintenance of the Justice Center Roof . 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

    Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

140



ORDINANCE 2011-77  
 
 

PW Crew Cab Trucks 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain truck replacements are needed for Public Works daily 
operations.                . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $44,424 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for two (2) PW Super 
Crew Cab Trucks.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

141



ORDINANCE 2011-78  
 
 

Fuel Management System Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget is being considered by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, this equipment has been bid: Bid document # 2011-AA-Fuel 
Management System, and 
 
WHEREAS, the current Fuel Management System needs to be updated to stay 
current with technology, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $31,994.40 (System -$29,984.40 + Maintenance- 

$2,010) from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the repair and maintenance of the Fuel Management 
System Roof Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

 Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

142


	AGENDA - October 17 Agenda.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Mintes - October 3 - No Quorum.pdf
	Council Minutes - October 10 - Special Called.pdf
	Work Session Minutes - October 10.pdf
	PC Letters for Public Hearings.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes - 10-10.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Ordinance Committee October 12, 2011 Minutes.pdf
	Envrionmental Advisory Board - Resume -  Webb.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Minutes.pdf
	DRA Resume - Dayna Cantin Oldham.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Mayors Report - ES Chamber Request.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-70 - RES - ALDOT US 98 Medians.pdf
	Backup to 2011-70 - RES.pdf
	2011-71 - RES - Mercy Medical TEFRA.pdf
	2011-72 - RES - Fuel Management System-2012.pdf
	2011-73 - RES - PD Justice Center Re-Roof Project.pdf
	2011-74 - RES - DD Fuel.pdf
	2011-75 - RES -  PPDTrav Resolution-Legislative.pdf
	2011-76 - RES - MBNEP Stormwater Mgmt -authorize to sign-Consulting.pdf
	Backup to 2011-76 - RES.pdf
	2011-77 - RES - GOVDEALS COM.pdf
	2011-64 - ORD - ANNEXTION - NLDHwy18190ROWSouthRev0627.pdf
	2011-68 - ORD - Tennis Courts Resurfacing at Lott Park.pdf
	2011-70 - ORD - Hearthstone, Lot 1 -  Rezone A.pdf
	Backup to 2011-70 - ORD.pdf
	2011-71 - ORD - Rezone Hearthstone, Lot 2 - B.pdf
	Backup to 2011-71 - ORD.pdf
	2011-72 - ORD - Rezone - HEARTHSTONE C - Lot 3.pdf
	Backup to 2011-72 - ORD.pdf
	2011-73 - ORD - REVISION TO ZONING MAP.pdf
	2011-74 - ORD - Timber Creek Drainage Repairs-prior Budget adoption.pdf
	2011-75 - ORD - Transfer Station-Garbage - Feasibility Study-before budget adoption.pdf
	2011-76 - ORD -  PD Justice Center Re-Roof Project - before Budget adopted.pdf
	2011-77 - ORD - PW Extended Cab Trucks - prior to Budget adoption.pdf
	2011-78 - ORD - Fuel Mgmt System - before Budget adopted.pdf

